
Minutes 2010.07.20 

Page 196 
Book 13 

VILLAGE OF WESLEY CHAPEL  
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  

July 20, 2010 – 7:00 P. M. 
 

The Village Council of Wesley Chapel, North Carolina, met in the Fellowship 
Hall of Wesley Chapel United Methodist Church at 120 Potter Road South, 
Wesley Chapel, North Carolina. 
 
Present:   Mayor Horvath, Mayor Pro-tem Bradford; Council Members Hess and 
Ormiston 
Absent:  Council Member Brotton 
 
Others Present:   
Village Clerk/Finance Officer:  Cheryl Bennett 
Planning/Zoning Administrator:  Joshua Langen 
Concerned citizens:  Carol Mullis, John Barnard, Gayla Adams, Scott & Kelly 
Hickey  

 
Meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM and a quorum was present. 
 
1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / INVOCATION 
Mayor Horvath led the Pledge of Allegiance and Mayor Pro-tem Bradford gave 
the invocation.   
 
2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, AND / OR ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Item 8. “Union County Neighborhood Leaders Forum”; Item 9A. “Businesses and 
National Night Out and Festival”; and Item 9b. “Festival Booth Costs” were 
added to the agenda.  Bradford made a motion to adopt the agenda with these 
changes; Ormiston seconded the motion. 
 The motion passed unanimously.  
 
3. BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT – CONSIDER REPAPOINTMENT OF 
MEMBER WITH TERM EXPIRING AUGUST 31, 2010  
Mayor Horvath said Bruce Ewing had applied for reappointment to a new term on 
the Board of Adjustment.  Ewing said he has lived here since 2001 and has been 
on the Board of Adjustment since 2005; he said it was an opportunity to serve the 
community.  Ormiston asked if there was anything he would like to see changed 
on the Board; he replied no.  He was asked if the rules and procedures are 
thorough, and he replied yes.  Hess asked him what role he saw the Planning 
Board playing:  Ewing replied that they bring things to Council for direction and 
follow through.  Ormiston made a motion to re-appoint Bruce Ewing to the Board 
of Adjustment for a new three year term; Bradford seconded the motion. 
 The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 



Minutes 2010.07.20 

Page 197 
Book 13 

4. EAGLE ENGINEERING REPORT ON DAM IN PROPOSED PAGE 
PRICE PARK 
John Barnard said in summary the dam appears to be stable.  The hydraulics are 
not good, it would only meet a ten year storm before overtopping.  He reviewed 
the statistical data, and noted it has weathered several storms in excess of the ten 
year level.  DENR tagged it high hazard due to the proximity to Highway 84, in a 
storm it will top the road and several houses may be affected.  A detailed flood 
study would be necessary to determine the impact on the homes.  The PMP 
(potential maximum precipitation) is forty-one inches of rain in 24 hours, and the 
1/3 PMP is about 13.7 inches of rain in 24 hours.  Test results show a weir ninety 
feet long is needed; there would be a flat concrete spill basin below it, down to the 
forty-two inch pipe that goes under Highway 84.  They also looked at seepage, 
which doesn’t appear to be a problem.  Barnard recommended some drains at the 
toe to control it.  The conservative cost estimate for the spillway, drain and 
permitting is $410,000.  The spillway and drain are required by DENR, and they 
recommend toe drains, a maintenance program and a flood study.  That side of the 
street is not a floodplain, and has not yet had a flood study conducted.  He 
recommended some armoring of the upstream side of the dam against weather and 
erosion.  They hit alluvial soil only in the center of the pond, and he didn’t feel it 
was much of an issue.  Because the water is usually near the top of the dam, there 
is not much storage area so a large spillway is needed.  It wouldn’t affect the 
footpath and vehicle access.  Asked about the timing, he said you would want to 
do it all at once; you would need a lot of drawings sent to Raleigh for permits.  
Mayor Horvath asked about alternatives; Barnard said you need ninety feet of 
weir whether in the center of the lake or not.  You would have to go through the 
dam, and wouldn’t get a decent foundation without going down to the rock and 
then you would have to drain the pond.  Langen asked if the pipe is undersized; 
Barnard said it meets the twenty-five year storm, so DOT doesn’t think it 
undersized and won’t change it.  Hess asked what size culvert is needed; Barnard 
said two seventy-two inch culverts; DOT wouldn’t want the town to put them in 
due to the cost to replace them in the future.  Barnard said Bradford found an 
option in the dam safety rules to potentially back off the one hundred year storm 
standards; you would need to prove the only issue is NC Hwy 84 and that none of 
the homes would be impacted all the way to Price Mill Creek.  You would have to 
ask for a FEMA map revision to prevent building on both sides of the creek.  Hess 
asked if they have done this before; Barnard said they have done map revisions; it 
is not a quick process and takes four to six months.  This is not a studied 
floodplain.  Step two is to look at NC Hwy. 84 and the impact with and without a 
dam breach.  If one and one half (1.5) foot of water goes over the highway, they 
consider it destroyed.  Based on the preliminary study eight-tenths of a foot (.8 
foot) would go over the road and the dam breach adds to that.  Before you look at 
the road, you would look at the houses first; the flood study costs $25,000 and the 
road impact maybe $4,000 to $5,000 more.  Hess said it sounds pretty 
insurmountable, and for liability would not be good.  Barnard said they also 
looked at the option of lowering the level of the lake one foot, and it would reduce 
the spillway fifty feet, but you end up with a mud flat; it would save $70,000 in 



Minutes 2010.07.20 

Page 198 
Book 13 

spillway costs.  Hess said it didn’t sound worth it.  Barnard said they have never 
petitioned DENR for a change like that, and they like to be as conservative as 
possible.  Bradford asked if the water level were dropped would it impact the high 
hazard rating; Barnard replied no.  Barnard said one other issue is the wetlands at 
the head of the lake would be impacted if you lowered the water level.  Mayor 
Horvath asked about issues with submitting a design and having major changes by 
DENR; Barnard said there are usually only minor tweaks.  If the dam breaches 
there would be 808,000 cubic feet of water and it would come out at 607 cubic 
feet of water per second.   Ormiston questioned the liability now that we have this 
information, what do we communicate regardless of what we do.  Barnard said a 
flood study would take three weeks in the field, and two to three weeks to run the 
data.  Barnard said the final report would be delivered Friday.  Mayor Horvath 
asked what changed from our earlier $250,000 estimate; Barnard said meeting the 
1/3 PMP and the lack of water storage in the pond.  Bradford asked if we lower 
the water level a foot would we have to continually monitor it; Barnard said no, 
they would set the weir drain at that level.  The lower water level could affect the 
algae and water quality.     
 
5. DISCUSSION ON POSSIBLE OUTSTANDING GRANTS 
ASSOCIATED WITH PAGE PRICE PARK    
Mayor Horvath said he asked Bradford to compile a list of possible grants noting 
there are no guarantees until you actually get the awards.  So far we have been 
awarded the PARTF and Adopt a Trail grants, and the Wildlife Resources grant 
for the pier is automatic.  We did not receive the RTP grant, which is generally for 
larger scale trails.  Bradford described the other possible grants which include 
Water Resources Development Phases I, II and III; an Optimist Club grant; FFTC 
Union County, Lowes Charitable & Education Foundation, Home Depot Healthy 
Communities Grant and FEMA Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation Grant.  Bradford 
reported that last night the Parks and Rec Committee voted to recommend we not 
go with the Page Price Park because of the cost of the dam and pursue Dogwood 
Acres with a PARTF grant there.  Ormiston said if the desire has been to meet the 
amenities desired in the Parks and Rec Master Plan, there are other locations, and 
we should see whether there are other viable options for a park location. Mayor 
Horvath said didn’t Parks and Rec do that a year ago?  Bradford said they could 
review options again.        
  
 
6. UPDATE ON CONTRACT DEPUTY DISCUSSIONS WITH ASTON 
PROPERTIES AND JDH CAPITAL  
Ormiston said she spoke with Karen Partee at Aston Properties, and they offered 
$5,000 per year for two years in 2011 and 2012 for a deputy.  She has not yet 
heard from JDH, and left a message with one of the owners. 
 
7.  CALL FOR PUBLIC HEARIN GON TEXT AMENDMENTS TO 
ZONING ORDINANCE TO ADD ARTICLE 15 PLANNING BOARD AND 
TEXT AMENDMENTS TO SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE RELATED TO 



Minutes 2010.07.20 

Page 199 
Book 13 

HOMEOWNER ASSOCIATIONS IN SECTION 411 FOR AUGUST 17, 2010 
AT WESLEY CHAPEL UNITED METHODIST CHURCH AT 7 PM 
Ormiston had concerns on the HOA amendment; it focuses on new major 
subdivisions and questioned what would happen if a neighborhood decided to 
gate their roads and they would become private roads.  Langen said they could 
either let the roads deteriorate or create an HOA and this doesn’t affect them.  We 
could add language if the subdivision were to acquire amenities, conversely the 
subdivision could form an HOA for plat approval and could disband it thereafter.   
Putting in a gate would require a permit, and that could create a trigger to form an 
HOA.  Ormiston questioned that if they could disband the HOA what is the 
purpose of this; Langen replied it gets them started on the right foot; for long term 
maintenance of facilities you might need a bonding mechanism.  Hess said he had 
not had time to review these; Langen said he would try to get them to Council 
sooner in the future.  Ormiston asked for the last paragraph regarding foreclosing 
to be run by the attorney; she was not sure we had the authority.  Langen said 
attorney Sistrunk had seen the earlier language which was more restrictive, and 
they worked hard to bring it to the current language.  He will have Sistrunk take 
another look at it and look at triggers for HOA’s.    
   
8. UNION COUNTY NEIGHBORHOOD LEADERS FORUM  
Ormiston said the goal of the group is to represent and help HOA’s in Union 
County.  They also work with areas without HOA’s.   Fish and Kukor from the 
group testified in Raleigh; one of their objectives is to require HOA management 
groups to be certified.  They had a forum in Stallings July 17 and another in 
IndianTrail.  Wesley Chapel might host a forum possibly with Weddington and 
Marvin.  Ormiston noted the group also works with items such as Community 
Watch and foreclosure issues.  This item will be put on the next agenda.  
 
9A. BUSINESSES AND NATIONAL NIGHT OUT AND FESTIVAL 
Mayor Horvath said we have two events coming up and with businesses being 
impacted by the economy, Diana Bowler was concerned that both events were 
contacting the businesses.  Ormiston said the Safety Committee needs are limited 
and they have what they need.  Tessie Morris, Safety Committee Chairman and 
Diana Bowler, Fall Heritage Festival Chairman will communicate.   
 
9B. FESTIVAL BOOTH COSTS 
The Festival Committee suggested a fee of $10 for booths, and there was a 
question if the fee should be different for food/non-profit/craft booths.  Since the 
fee is so low, it was felt even non-profit groups could pay the fee.  Mayor Horvath 
would like to see an accounting at the end.  Bennett will check with Diana Bowler 
and see if there’s some flexibility on having food vendors and others who use 
electricity to pay perhaps $50.  Mayor Horvath reminded that the Committee 
should not move forward before the policy is set.   
 
 
 



Minutes 2010.07.20 

Page 200 
Book 13 

 10.  OTHER BUSINESS 
A special meeting will be held here at the Church on July 30, 2010 at 6 pm on 
Page Price Park and related grant decisions and CIP planning.   
Bradford said the Parks and Rec Committee would like to consider having three 
alternate members and adding Stacy Brocius who lives in Wesley Oaks; she 
organized a 5k fund raiser there.  Hess suggested maybe they should add two 
regular members instead; Bradford will check and see if Stacy wants to attend 
regular meetings.  Ormiston said we shouldn’t change committee numbers for the 
people; we should change it for our needs.  Hess said he welcomed diversity and 
more debate at the committee level; we should push as many recommendations as 
we can to the committee level.  Currently the committee has seven members and 
two alternates.  Ormiston asked do we want the committee to grow, and where do 
we stop.  Bradford asked if we prefer seven regular and three alternates, or nine 
regular members and two alternates.  Ormiston said we see lots of unanimous 
votes, it doesn’t necessarily reflect diversity.   
Carol Mullis asked about making a decision on the park on the 30th when the 
surveys were due on the 31st; Gayla Adams also felt it misleading.  Bradford said 
we should have a good deal of the results in, Hess noted we have to decide on the 
grant.  Mayor Horvath said most people he has talked to have already responded 
and the grant deadline is August 1.  Ormiston said she wants a copy of the July 12 
minutes; the gears have changed from the Parks and Rec Committee and it 
impacts what we have on the fact sheet since they now back Dogwood Acres.  
Bradford said Dogwood Acres has always been a priority of Parks and Rec, Page 
Price Park was a priority of Council.  Hess said he was at the Parks and Rec 
meeting; and he and Bradford have been working on getting the costs down to 
make Page Price Park work.  Bradford explained that Parks and Rec made a 
recommendation to council to not accept the PARTF grant, not develop that park, 
and re-apply for a PARTF grant on Dogwood Acres.  Mayor Horvath noted 
financial decisions are made by Council.  Whether other properties are available 
was discussed.  Mayor Horvath said new opportunities keep arising, but at some 
point we have to make a decision.  Bennett will compile the survey results as of 5 
pm on July 30th and update them again on the 31st.     
 
11. COUNCIL COMMENTS- none 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT    
Hess made a motion to adjourn; Ormiston seconded the motion. 
 The motion was approved unanimously. 
The meeting was adjourned.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________   _____________________ 
Cheryl Bennett, Clerk    Mayor Brad Horvath 


